
1 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 
PHOENIX AVIATION ADVISORY BOARD 

 
Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the 
PHOENIX AVIATION ADVISORY BOARD, and to the general public, that the 
PHOENIX AVIATION ADVISORY BOARD will hold a meeting open to the public on 
Thursday, April 18, 2024 at 3:00 p.m. located at the City of Phoenix Aviation 
Department, PAAB Conference Room, 2485 E. Buckeye Road, Phoenix, Arizona 
85034, or via WebEx teleconference. 
  
OPTIONS TO ACCESS THIS MEETING: 
 

Watch the meeting virtually using the WebEx link provided below.  
 
https://cityofphoenix.webex.com/cityofphoenix/j.php?MTID=mb4e5bee0cbeef010
21cc263396b58173 
 
Call in to listen to the meeting, dial 602-666-0783, and Enter Meeting ID 
2632 969 7310#. Press # again when prompted for attendee ID.  

 
Public Comment: If you wish to provide a written comment or speak at the meeting 
virtually or by phone, please submit a request to pearl.meza@phoenix.gov no later than 
10 a.m. on Thursday, April 18, 2024. The email should include your first and last name, 
email address, the item number(s), and whether you would like your comment entered 
into the record or if you wish to speak. Those who wish to attend in person may submit 
a request to speak by completing a speaker card at the registration desk at the 
beginning of the meeting. 
 
Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 38-431.02B, notice is given that the 
Phoenix Aviation Advisory Board may vote to go into Executive Session, or Sessions, 
for discussion or consultation, for legal advice with the attorney or attorneys of the 
public body for any agenda items listed below, as authorized by Arizona Revised 
Statutes, Section 38-431.03 (A)(3) or for discussion of records and/or information that is 
exempted by law from public disclosure, as authorized by Arizona Revised Statutes, 
Section 38-431.03(A)(2). If authorized by a majority vote of the Phoenix Aviation 
Advisory Board, the Executive Session will be held immediately after the vote and will 
not be open to the public. If a decision is requested, the Phoenix Aviation Advisory 
Board may decide the matter in the public meeting or defer the decision to a later date. 
The agenda items that may be subject to an Executive Session pursuant to Arizona 
Revised Statutes, Sections 38-431.03 (A) (2) and 38-431.03 (A) (3) are as follows: 
Items 4, 5, & 6. 
 
One or more board members may participate via teleconference. Agenda items may be 
taken out of order. 
 
The agenda for the meeting is as follows: 

https://cityofphoenix.webex.com/cityofphoenix/j.php?MTID=mb4e5bee0cbeef01021cc263396b58173
https://cityofphoenix.webex.com/cityofphoenix/j.php?MTID=mb4e5bee0cbeef01021cc263396b58173
https://cityofphoenix.webex.com/weblink/register/raeef5a9e6237ae4c046c13aed50f1593
https://cityofphoenix.webex.com/weblink/register/raeef5a9e6237ae4c046c13aed50f1593


2 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

SUMMARY OF CURRENT EVENTS  
 

1. Summary of Current Events by the Aviation Director  
 

2. Summary of Current Events by the Airline Station Manager 
 
MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

3. For Approval or Correction, the Minutes of the Phoenix Aviation Advisory 
Board Meeting on March 21, 2024 

 
INFORMATION ONLY (ITEM 4) 
 

4. Peer-to-Peer Car Sharing Program Update 
 
This report provides an update to the Phoenix Aviation Advisory Board on the 
Peer-to-Peer Car Sharing Program at Phoenix Sky Harbor Airport. 
 
 

THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY. 
 
INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION (ITEMS 5 & 6) 

 
 

5. Sky Harbor Security Screening Infrastructure and Future Needs 
 

This report provides the Phoenix Aviation Advisory Board with an overview of the 
various technologies, equipment, and processes utilized by the Transportation 
Security Administration (TSA) at Phoenix Sky Harbor International Airport. As the 
airport grows and develops, the Aviation Department and TSA are collaboratively 
identifying and procuring modern technologies and implementing innovative 
solutions where appropriate to meet passenger demand and expectations. 
 
 

THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION. 
 
 
6. Heat Safety Plan 

 

This report provides the Phoenix Aviation Advisory Board with an update on the 
Aviation Department’s Heat Safety Plan and heat-related preparedness activities 
occurring at Phoenix Sky Harbor Airport, Deer Valley Airport, and Goodyear 
Airport. 
 
 

THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION. 
 
 
ADVISORY BOARD INFORMATION AND FOLLOW-UP REQUESTS 



3 
 

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC 
 

This is the time for the public to comment. Members of the Board may not 
discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. Therefore, 
pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.01(H), action taken as a result of public 
comment will be limited to directing staff to study the matter, responding to any 
criticism, or scheduling the matter for further consideration and decision at a later 
time. 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

For further information, please call Pearl Meza, Management Assistant II, 
Aviation Department at 602-273-3382. For further documentation on this 
meeting, please visit skyharbor.com.  
 

Persons with a disability may request a reasonable accommodation; please 
contact Pearl Meza, Management Assistant II, Aviation Department, at 602-273-
3382. Or 7-1-1 friendly. The next Phoenix Aviation Advisory Board meeting is 
scheduled to take place on Thursday, May 16, 2024. 

 
 



4 
 

 
 

PHOENIX AVIATION ADVISORY BOARD 
SUMMARY MINUTES 

March 21, 2024 
Meeting held via WebEx 

 

Board Members Present Board Members Absent 
Sandra Ferniza – Chairperson 
Ruben Alonzo – Vice-Chairperson 
Valencia Fisker 
Annette Musa 
Ron Price 
Andrew Cohn 
Verma Pastor 
David Shilliday 
Stephanie Cherny 
Chad Makovsky – Ex-Officio 

Tyler Gonzalez – Ex-Officio 
 

 

Staff Present 
Abbe Slade 
Andrew Durket 
Annie Sleeper 
Chad Makovsky 
Chris Baranowski 
Cindy Lizarraga 
Clif Looper 
Corrine Harbaugh  
Jason Gitkin 
 

Jay DeWitt 
Marshall Kain 
MaryHelen Martinez 
Matthew Becker 
Matthew Heil 
Michael Hughes 
Michael O’Shaughnessy 
Moe Yacut 
 

Pearl Meza 
Richard Graham 
Roxann Favors 
Ryan Hartnett 
Thomas Curran 
Thomas Sawyer 
Trey Nicholas  
William Robinson 

 

Members of the Public Present 
Karen Ratliff 
David Bonilla 
Noor-Alia Al-Sharabazz 
Cinthia Jimenez De Leon 
Vanessa Guzman 
Bonita Medina 

Joel Ericson 
Jasmine Glass 
Scott Matos-Elliot 
Joya Kizer 
Ginger Brown 
April Hernandez 

Claude Mattox 
Michael Smith 
Laura Perez 
Mike Martinez 
Maggie Gray 
Nick Ethier 

 
 
 



5 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

Chairperson Ferniza called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 
 
SUMMARY OF CURRENT EVENTS 
 

1. Summary of Current Events from the Director of Aviation Services  
 

Mr. Chad Makovsky welcomed the board members and provided passenger 
traffic highlights from 2023, the airport’s busiest year. He then provided recent 
examples of daily passenger statistics to compare how closely the airport is 
operating to some of the busiest days from 2023.  
 
Mr. Makovsky then reviewed Sky Harbor’s passenger traffic for January 2024. 
There has been a 2.2% domestic passenger increase over January 2023 and a 
12% increase for international travel during the same time. 
 
He then reviewed air service developments; he discussed four new routes by 
Frontier Airlines with one route being to Los Cabos and a brand-new route to 
Missoula, MT. 
 
Mr. Cohn asked if Sky Harbor was getting federal support from Customs, given 
the significant increase in international operations.  
 
Mr. Makovsky responded that the airport is receiving support from Customs. 
 
Ms. Ferniza asked how the proposed Frontier Airlines international flight would 
work, given Customs is in Terminal 4 while Frontier is in Terminal 3.  
 
Mr. Makovsky confirmed that Customs is in Terminal 4, and Aviation staff are 
currently working with the airline to create a plan to minimize customer confusion.  

 
He then provided an overview of the meetings with political and industry leaders 
and key topics discussed at the ACI-NA AAAE Legislative conference in 
Washington, D.C. 
 
He next discussed the award of congressionally directed funding to improve 
traffic flow on Sky Harbor Boulevard. He described the two main areas of 
congestion and the plan for improving traffic flow at those locations. 

 
He continued by discussing the Aviation Business Summit. He noted that Mayor 
Gallego, Councilwoman Hodge Washington, Board Chair Ferniza, and a variety 
of businesses attended the event. Mr. Makovsky also shared that it was a zero-
waste event with a 93% diversion rate. 



6 
 

 
Additionally, Mr. Makovsky shared that an inaugural awards ceremony was 
introduced at this Business Summit to recognize the performance of existing 
business partners, and he highlighted the individual award winners. 
 
Mr. Makovsky then discussed the commissioning of Southwest Airlines’ new 
Technical Operations Hangar along with Southwest’s history at Sky Harbor. 

 
He continued by highlighting the recent Soar with STEM event hosted by 
American Airlines. He provided information on participating schools and the 
various activities offered at this first-of-its-kind event.  
 
Mr. Makovsky also discussed the opening of three new food and beverage 
concepts at the Rental Car Center and the Terminal 4 food court.  
 
Finally, he discussed several upcoming City Council agenda items along with the 
resignation of District 7 Councilmember Ansari. 
 
Ms. Fisker commented that she appreciated the Council update slide and 
requested that it remain as a monthly update. 

 
2. Summary of Current Events by the Airline Station Manager 

 

Mr. Tyler Gonzales was not present.  
 
MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

3. For Approval or Correction, the Minutes of the Phoenix Aviation Advisory 
Board Meeting on February 15, 2024 

 

A motion was made by Mr. Cohn, seconded by Ms. Fisker, to approve this 
item.  
 

No public comments. 
The motion carried. 

 
DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION (ITEMS 4 & 5) 
 

4. Taxiway Construction Rent Credits for DVT Hangars LLC at DVT 
 

Mr. Robert Hawes presented this item. He began by showing an outlined map of 
Deer Valley Airport (DVT), which highlighted DVT Hangars’ corporate hangar 
project, phases one and two. 
 
He then explained that the existing taxilane between the two phases requires 
relocation and that DVT Hangars had previously been granted approval to adjust 



7 
 

it. To complete the centering of the existing taxilane, DVT Hangars will also fund 
the realignment of the connecter from their taxilane to the taxiway Delta.  

 

Mr. Hawes then discussed that DVT Hangars wants to improve runway access 
for their clients by completing a previously designed segment of Taxiway Delta. 
He explained that although Taxiway Charlie does provide access to the runway, 
the addition of the Taxiway Delta segment will improve circulation to and from the 
DVT Hangars development. 
 
In conclusion, Mr. Hawes provided the terms of the lease agreement, which 
include rent credits and adherence to Title 34 of Arizona Revised Statutes upon 
final City Council approval.  
 
Ms. Ferniza noted that the Business and Development Subcommittee approved 
this item and invited its Chairperson, Ms. Cherny, to provide comments. 
 
Ms. Cherny confirmed the subcommittee’s approval and thanked Aviation staff 
for their effort in finalizing the agreement.  
 
Mr. Cohn asked how the airport would receive security to ensure project 
completion. 
 
Mr. Hawes confirmed that a performance bond is required of companies doing 
work at the airport.  
 
Mr. Cohn then asked about a cul-de-sac within the construction bounds and if it 
would be accessible upon further development.  
 
Mr. Hawes confirmed that it would be accessible to both DVT Hangars and any 
development to the east of them.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Cohn, seconded by Ms. Cherny, to approve this 
item.  
 

No public comments. 
The motion carried. 
 

5. Request to Issue Revenue Contract Solicitation for Terminal 4 Lobby Retail 
and Extend Retail Lease with Paradies Lagardère 
 
Ms. Corrine Harbaugh presented this item. She began by providing the location 
of and services offered by a lobby retail concessionaire within Terminal 4. 
 



8 
 

She continued by discussing the services that an awardee for the contract would 
provide, the criteria for which proposals would be evaluated against, and the 
terms of the awarded contract.  
 
Ms. Harbaugh then explained that the new solicitation process is anticipated to 
last until early 2025, but the current contract expires at the end of June 2024. 
She requested that the current contract be extended until the solicitation process 
is complete to avoid interruption of service to customers.  
 
Ms. Ferniza noted that the Business and Development Subcommittee approved 
this item and invited its Chairperson, Ms. Cherny, to provide comments. 
 
Ms. Cherny confirmed the subcommittee’s approval and noted that the 
concessionaire consultant would be assisting with the solicitation process.  
 
A motion was made by Ms. Fisker, seconded by Ms. Cherny, to approve 
this item.  
 

No public comments. 
The motion carried. 

 

ADVISORY BOARD INFORMATION AND FOLLOW-UP REQUESTS  

Mr. Cohn requested additional information on Sky Harbor’s security screening 
infrastructure and future needs. 

Ms. Fisker requested an update on the Aviation Department’s car-sharing pilot program. 

Mr. Cohn requested additional information on the public comments provided at the 
meeting by Unite Here workers.  

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC 
 
Nicky Ethier provided public comment, discussing alleged unfair labor practices at SSP 
America, and asked that the city council investigate allegations of racial disparities. 
 
Jasmine Glass provided public comment, discussing alleged unfair labor practices at 
SSP America, and asked that the city council investigate allegations of racial disparities. 
 
Isabella Renfrow provided public comment, discussing alleged unfair labor practices at 
SSP America, and asked that the city council investigate allegations of racial disparities. 
 
David Bonita provided public comment, discussing alleged unfair labor practices at SSP 
America, and asked that the city council investigate allegations of racial disparities. 



9 
 

 
Michael Smith provided public comment, discussing alleged unfair labor practices at 
SSP America, and asked that the city council investigate allegations of racial disparities. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting ended at 3:40 p.m. 

 

 

  



10 
 

 

PHOENIX AVIATION ADVISORY BOARD REPORT 
To: Phoenix Aviation Advisory Board 
From: Chad R. Makovsky, A.A.E. 

Aviation Director 
Subject: Peer-to-Peer Car Sharing Program Update 

 
Description 
 
This report provides an update to the Phoenix Aviation Advisory Board on the Peer-to-
Peer Car Sharing Program at Phoenix Sky Harbor Airport (PHX).  

 
THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY. 
 
Report Summary 
Peer-to-peer (P2P) car sharing involves renting a privately owned vehicle to another 
individual through a peer-to-peer business company that provides a platform for vehicle 
owners to rent their privately owned vehicles for a fee. With this emerging business 
enterprise, the Aviation Department launched a one-year pilot program for P2P car-
sharing operators to better understand how P2P operations would work at PHX.  
 
Under the pilot program, Aviation entered into separate temporary operating license 
agreements with ANIHI NEWCO, LLC, d/b/a Avail, in January 2022 and Turo Inc., d/b/a 
Turo, in May 2022. Avail elected to cancel its operating agreement in March 2023 as the 
company ended its operations at PHX in December 2022. Turo opted to continue 
operations on a month-to-month basis after the one-year pilot ended and until a new 
operating agreement could be executed. Turo is currently the only P2P company 
operating at PHX. 
 
The temporary operating agreement required the P2P operators to pay an operating fee 
of 10% revenue per transaction and required car-sharing operations to be conducted in 
designated locations on airport property. Turo’s reportable gross revenue for the twelve 
months from June 2022 – May 2023 was $24,830,760, resulting in $2,483,076 in revenue 
to Aviation. Avail’s reportable gross revenue for eleven months of its operation from 
February 2022 – December 2022 was $327,984, resulting in $33,750 in revenue to 
Aviation. Total P2P operator transaction days between June 2022 – November 2023 
represented approximately 4% of total rental car transaction days (Attachment A – Car 
Sharing vs. Rental Car, 2019 – 2023). 
 
Staff identified a number of operational challenges and opportunities during the pilot 
program, including the need to proactively manage parking facility availability at the 
designated locations and managing expectations of the individual disaggregated car-
share owners who operate numerous shared vehicles. 
 
As a result, Business & Properties staff worked with Aviation Technology to leverage the 
department’s existing license plate recognition software to monitor P2P operator 



11 
 

compliance with operational and financial reporting requirements. Additionally, Aviation 
expanded designated parking facilities to include the 24th Street Sky Train station parking 
lot to moderate parking availability among the designated locations.  
 
With the end of the one-year pilot program, Aviation sought approval to permanently 
establish a new fee by ordinance in the City Code for P2P car-sharing operators. The 
established fee is 10% of car-sharing operators’ gross revenue for vehicle-sharing 
transactions conducted at PHX. In February 2024, the City Council amended Phoenix 
City Code, Chapter 4, to require P2P car-sharing operators to enter into an operating 
agreement with Aviation that includes a 10% gross revenue requirement for business 
conducted at PHX. 
 
The revised P2P Vehicle Sharing Operating Agreement incorporates best practices from 
peer airport agreements on car-sharing and addresses lessons learned during the pilot 
program. The revised operating agreement is currently under review by Aviation Legal. 
Once the final form of the new operating agreement is ready, Aviation will end the month-
to-month operating agreement with P2P operators and replace it with the revised 
operating agreement. Staff will also share the revised operating agreement with 
Getaround, Inc., another car-sharing company that has expressed interest in starting 
operations at PHX to add to its nationwide service areas.  

 
Financial Impact 
10% gross revenue of Peer-to-Peer shared vehicle transactions. Revenue generated 
from Turo transactions based on 10% operating fees from June 2022 through February 
2024 is $4,408,977.  
 
Location 
Phoenix Sky Harbor International Airport - 2485 E. Buckeye Road 
 
Recommendation 
This item is for information only. 
 



12 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 P2P Car Sharing 
  



13 
 

PHOENIX AVIATION ADVISORY BOARD REPORT 
To: Phoenix Aviation Advisory Board 
From: Chad R. Makovsky, A.A.E. 

Aviation Director 
Subject: Sky Harbor Security Screening Infrastructure and Future Needs 

 
Description 
This report provides the Phoenix Aviation Advisory Board with an overview of current 
and future passenger screening infrastructure and applicable technology.  
 
THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION. 
 
Report Summary 
Staff will provide an overview of the various technologies, equipment, and processes 
utilized by the Transportation Security Administration (TSA) at Phoenix Sky Harbor 
International Airport. As the airport grows and develops, the Aviation Department and 
TSA are collaboratively identifying and procuring modern technologies and 
implementing innovative solutions where appropriate to meet passenger demand and 
expectations. 
 
Location 
Phoenix Sky Harbor International Airport - 2485 E. Buckeye Road 
 
Recommendation 
This item is for information and discussion.  
 
 
  



14 

PHOENIX AVIATION ADVISORY BOARD REPORT 
To: Phoenix Aviation Advisory Board 
From: Chad R. Makovsky, A.A.E. 

Aviation Director 
Subject: Heat Safety Plan 

Description 
This report provides the Phoenix Aviation Advisory Board with an update on the Aviation 
Department’s Heat Safety Plan and heat-related preparedness activities occurring at 
Phoenix Sky Harbor Airport, Deer Valley Airport, and Goodyear Airport. 

THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION. 

Report Summary 
The Aviation Department considers the health and well-being of all airport employees 
to be a top priority and has placed a special emphasis on heat-related awareness and 
safety campaigns. Last year, in coordination with the city’s central HR Safety team, 
the Department developed a Heat Illness and Injury Prevention Program. This year, 
that program is being updated and expanded.  

The Aviation Department’s Heat Safety Plan incorporates multiple elements to reduce 
or eliminate employee exposure to risks of heat stress. These efforts include 
education and training through videos, documents, flyers, meetings, and briefings that 
promote topics such as proper hydration, the provision of breaks and shade, and the 
use of personal protective equipment.  

Aviation is coordinating with the city’s Office of Heat Response and Mitigation as part 
of this effort to implement additional heat-related recommendations established by the 
State of Arizona and OSHA.  

The Aviation Department is also taking steps to educate all stakeholders about the 
recently adopted City Ordinance G-7241 (Attachment A), which addresses the 
required mitigation of heat-related illness and injuries in the workplace for all 
contractors, lessees, and licensees who do business with the City of Phoenix. 

Public Outreach 
The Aviation Department recently developed a dedicated airport campus employee 
resource page on skyharbor.com. In coordination with public safety agencies and key 
airport tenants, the department is also sponsoring a Heat Safety Fair. The airport will 
also coordinate a media event to provide information on monsoon safety, heat 
preparations, and workforce safety. 

Location 
Phoenix Sky Harbor International Airport - 2485 E. Buckeye Road 

Recommendation 
This item is for information and discussion. 



ORDINANCE G-7241 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 18 OF THE 
PHOENIX CITY CODE TO REVISE ARTICLE I, SECTION 
18-2(A)(6) AND ADD ARTICLE XI TO ADDRESS
CONTRACTOR REQUIREMENTS FOR THE MITIGATION
OF HEAT-RELATED ILLNESSES AND INJURIES IN THE
WORKPLACE.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PHOENIX as 

follows: 

SECTION 1. That Chapter 18, Article I, Section 18-2(A)(6) is hereby 

amended and revised to clarify the authority and responsibility for monitoring 

compliance with the contractor requirements for the mitigation of heat-related illnesses 

and injuries as set forth in Article XI as fo llows: 

Article I. 
In General 

* * * * 

Sec. 18-2 Administrative provisions. 

A. Powers and duties of Phoenix Commission on Human Relations and
Equal Opportunity Department.

**** 

6. EXCEPT FOR ARTICLE XI, [t]he authority and responsibility for
administering this chapter rests with the Director of the Equal
Opportunity Department.

**** 

Attachment A












	March 21, 2024

